ACTIVITY REPORT FISCAL YEAR 2008 - 2009

ANN ARBOR OPEN SPACE AND PARKLAND PRESERVATION PROGRAM

PREPARED FOR:

THE CITY OF ANN ARBOR
GREENBELT ADVISORY COMMISSION
PARKLAND ADVISORY COMMISSION

PREPARED BY:

THE CONSERVATION FUND

America's Partner in Conservation



TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND	
GREENBELT	4
LAND PROTECTION	4
Strategic DIRECTION	4
Land acquisitions	
LEVERAGING FUNDS	
FRPP funds received	5
Local money leveraged	
LANDOWNER OUTREACH	6
PRESERVE WASHTENAW	6
FINANCIAL SPREADSHEET	6
STATUS OF GOALS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2008 – 2009	6
GOALS FOR 2009 - 2010	7
PARK LAND ACQUISITIONS	8
Strategic Direction	8
LAND PROTECTION	
FINANCIAL SPREADSHEET	8
STATUS OF GOALS FOR 2008 – 2009	
Goals for 2009 - 2010	
APPENDICES	9

ACTIVITY REPORT FISCAL YEAR 2008 - 2009

ANN ARBOR OPEN SPACE AND PARKLAND PRESERVATION PROGRAM

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

The City of Ann Arbor residents are fortunate enough to not only have a vibrant park system, but to also have open space surrounding the city that provides scenic vistas and attracts folks to this area. In 2003, residents had the insight to pass the Open Space and Parkland Preservation Millage, commonly referred to the Parks and Greenbelt program. Money is generated through this tax levy is used to purchase parkland within the City, as well as, to protect farmland, open spaces and natural areas within portions of 8 Townships surrounding Ann Arbor, known as the Greenbelt District. The purpose of the initiative is to preserve open space, natural habitats, farmland, and the City's source waters inside and outside the city limits.

Since the passage of the millage, the City has purchased an additional 40 acres of parkland. These parcels have added critical parcels to existing parkland, protected critical natural areas remaining in the City, and provided linkages between parks, increasing the viability of the overall park system. Outside of the City, the millage has helped to protect over 1320 acres of working farmland and open space outside of the City. Protecting farmland provides many benefits to the Ann Arbor residents by protecting the rural, scenic vistas, local agricultural economy, as well as providing habitat for wildlife.

Since 2003, Ann Arbor, Webster and Scio Townships located within the Greenbelt District have also passed similar millages, providing opportunities for the Greenbelt to leverage city funds and collaborate with other jurisdictions on land preservation. Washtenaw County Parks and Recreation also has funds for the purchase of high quality natural areas, and have partnered with the City Greenbelt on several transactions.

GREENBELT

LAND PROTECTION

STRATEGIC DIRECTION

As outlined in the Greenbelt's Strategic Plan, which was originally adopted in 2005, the program has focused on forming large blocks of protected farmland and open space through the acquisition of easements, as well as protecting land along the Huron River. The Greenbelt identified 5 areas to concentrate acquisitions within the Greenbelt District to form these large blocks of protected land. The Commission continues to use the Strategic Plan to guide recommendations to Council on land acquisition.

Over the last 2 years, however, the City of Ann Arbor has witnessed changes within the local economy and a significant downturn in the local real estate market, which has had an effect on the Greenbelt Program. The downturn in the market has resulted in fewer developers buying land in the area and an increase in properties on the market and properties remaining on the market for a longer period of time. Ultimately, this has equated to appraised values for development rights decreasing from an average of \$16,000 / acre to \$8,000 / acre.

The Greenbelt Advisory Commission modified the Strategic plan in 2008 to also include language in favor of supporting small farms / local food farms. To date, the Greenbelt has focused on larger farms — 40 acres or great — that were eligible for Farm and Ranch Land Protection (FRPP) grant funding. The Greenbelt is exploring ways that the program may also support smaller farms that are producing for the direct market in the Ann Arbor area.

LAND ACQUISITIONS

To date, the Greenbelt Program has helped to protect 1320 acres on working farms and natural areas. These properties have a total fair market value of \$19.6 million, with a cost to the Ann Arbor taxpayers of \$10.1 million. Thus, the City has contributed roughly 50% of the purchase price.

During the 2008-2009 fiscal year, the Greenbelt completed 4 acquisitions, for a total of . First, the Greenbelt collaborated with Washtenaw County Parks and Recreation and Scio Township for the purchase of 6 parcels in Scio Township. The property is a high quality woodland and is owned and managed by the Washtenaw County Parks.

The Greenbelt also protected 3 working farms – one in Pittsfield Township, and two in Webster Township. All the easements were purchased with grant funding from FRPP, in addition to other sources of local match, as detailed below.

LEVERAGING FUNDS

FRPP FUNDS RECEIVED

For the 2009 grant cycle, the City was awarded \$1,030,500 toward the purchase of development rights on the William and Cherie Nixon Farm in Webster Township. The Nixon farm is ideally located adjacent to two protected farms – the Smyth and Merkel / Heller farm.

Since 2005, the City has secured over \$5 million from the FRPP program. The City has also partnered with other local agencies within the Greenbelt District, which also received FRPP grant funds.

LOCAL MONEY LEVERAGED

In November 2008, the Greenbelt Program partnered with the City's Solid Waste Department to protect 90 acres of the Walter Hilton estate in Pittsfield Township. In addition, Pittsfield Township was awarded a State and a USDA Farm and Ranch Land Protection Program grant for the purchase of development rights on the property. The property is adjacent to the City's composting center and the Solid Waste Department also purchase 52 acres of the property for future expansion of the site.

In January of 2009, the City of Ann Arbor contributed funds toward the purchase of 6 adjacent parcels (90 acres) in Scio Township. The County's Natural Areas Preservation Program identified the parcels as high priority for acquisition, and collectively, the parcels contain high quality woodlands. The county was the lead agency on the purchase and owns and manages the site. The property will remain a natural area with hiking trails and a small parking lot for access to the site. The City contributed \$350,000 or 16% of the overall purchase price, Scio Township contributed 10%, and the country contributed the remainder of the funds.

In May 2009 Webster Township and the City partnered on the protection of two adjacent properties – the Smyth farm and the Merkel / Heller farm. The Township received grant from FRPP for PDR on the Smyth farm to cover 50% of the purchase price. The City and Webster Township each contributed 25% to cover the remainder of the purchase price. The City received a grant from FRPP for the Merkel / Heller farm to cover 50% of the purchase price. Again the City and Township partnered on the PDR on the farm, with the Township covering \$110,000, or 8%.

LANDOWNER OUTREACH

Due to the local economic and real estate markets, the City has experienced an increase in applications over the last 2 years. As such, no landowner forums were organized for this year. We expect to send out a round of applications in preparation for the 2010 FRPP application cycle.

PRESERVE WASHTENAW

Preserve Washtenaw is a collaborative group consisting of public agencies and private organizations in Washtenaw County, focused on land preservation. Preserve Washtenaw has informally been meeting for over 3 years, and this past year formed a charter to solidify communication among the groups. The City is an active member of Preserve Washtenaw. The purpose of Preserve Washtenaw is to serve as a coordinating body for ongoing public and private land protection efforts, ensuring the highest possible level of cooperation and communication, and least possible amount of duplication and overlap. The group also hopes to provide a virtual single point of entry for landowners interested in land protection and/or stewardship to reduce confusion for landowners. The partners include Washtenaw Land Trust, Washtenaw County Parks and Recreation Natural Area Program, Raisin Valley Land Trust, Washtenaw Land Trust, Southeast Michigan Land Conservancy, Ann Arbor Township, Webster Township, Pittsfield Township, Scio Township, The City of Ann Arbor and Washtenaw County Planning and Environment.

FINANCIAL SPREADSHEET

See Appendix A for details.

STATUS OF GOALS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2008 – 2009

- Leverage Greenbelt funds by Applying for FRPP funds on 3 properties.
 - THE GREENBELT APPLIED FOR GRANTS ON 4 PROPERTIES AND RECEIVED FUNDING FOR 1 OF THE PROPERTIES.
- As part of the Greenbelt's ongoing discussions of value and the real estate market, release a Request for Proposals to be sent to developers and bankers who own property within the Greenbelt District in order for them to submit a price / acre bid if they wish to sell their property to the City's Greenbelt.

- THE REQUEST FOR BIDS WAS RELEASED IN XXXXX 2008. THE GREENBELT RECEIVED 14 RESONSES AND IS CURRENTLY WORKING WITH PARTNERS ON THE POTENTIAL ACQUISITION OF 3 OF THOSE PROPERTIES.
- Leverage Greenbelt funds by Collaborating with Townships and County on applications.
 - THIS FISCAL YEAR THE CITY COMPLETED 4 DEALS, ALL OF WHICH WERE COMPLETED WITH PARTNERS. THE OPEN ROADS PURCHASE IN SCIO TOWNSHIP WAS IN COLLABORATINO WITH THE COUNTY AND SCIO TOWNSHIP; HILTON PURCHASE OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS WAS COMPLETED WITH THE HELP OF PITTSFIELD TOWNSHIP, STATE AND FEDERAL GRANTS, AND BOHT THE MERKEL AND SMYTH PDR WERE COMPLETED WITH FEDERAL GRANTS AND IN COLLABORATION WITH WEBSTER TOWNSHIP.
- Close on 4 new properties.
 - THE GREENBELT COMPLETED 4 TRANSACTIONS ONE IN SCIO TOWNSHIP, TWO IN WEBSTER TOWNSHIP AND ONE IN PITTSFIELD TOWNSHIP.
- Obtain at least 25% matching funds on all transactions from sources including local government, state government, federal government and landowner contributions.
 - THE MATCHING FUNDS RANGED FROM 40% TO 84% WITH A CUMULATIVE AVERAGE OF 64% FOR THE FISCAL YEAR.
- Continue to explore ways to tangibly connect Ann Arbor taxpayers with the Greenbelt program, including but not limited to newsletters, events, and a Small Farms Initiative with Ann Arbor Township.
 - THE GREENBELT HAS CONTINUED TO EXPLORE WAYS TO SUPPORT SMALL FARMS AND LOCAL FOODS AND HAS BEEN REVISING THE EASEMENT LANGUAGE TO ADD PROVISIONS FOR THE SPECIFIC TYPES OF AGRICULTURE.

GOALS FOR 2009 - 2010

- Apply for FRPP funds on at least 3 properties.
- Close on at least 5 properties.
- Complete 1,000 acre block for Webster Township.
- Obtain at least 20% matching fund on all transactions from local governments, state government, federal grants or landowner donations.

PARK LAND ACQUISITIONS

STRATEGIC DIRECTION

During the last fiscal year, the Park Advisory Commission and staff utilized GIS to embark on a Strategic Planning process for parkland acquisitions. Through GIS, vacant parcels were identified and ranked based on their suitability for acquisition as a park. Separate ranking schema was developed for each of the four types of parks — neighborhood parks, community / active recreation parks, urban parks, and natural areas. The goal of this process is to provide a strategic approach to ensure the viability of the City's park system.

Through the strategic planning process, using GIS, staff was able **to** identify underserved neighborhoods. In an ideal system, every household should be within walking distance (¼ mile) of a neighborhood park (City of Ann Arbor PROS Plan F6). By using functions of GIS, the housing units not within walking distance of an existing neighborhood park were identified. This helps to ensure adequate access to the park system for all neighborhoods.

This fiscal year, the Parks Advisory Commission began to build on the GIS study and identify specific parcels that are priority for future acquisitions, as well as broader priorities for the park system. These priorities will be further refined as part of the update process for the update of the PROS Plan.

LAND PROTECTION

The City, in partnership with Scio Township completed the purchase of a Conservation Easement on the Botsford Property. The property contains high quality natural features including oak-hickory forest that covers most of the hilly terrain on the site. Wildflower flora is diverse and dense, with few areas lacking groundcover. The woods provide habitat for wood thrush and scarlet tanager, which both need large forested areas for nesting. Two small perennial streams are present on the southeast portion of the site. The rare small tree wahoo (Euonymus atropurpurea) is located along the stream at the western edge of the property. Small wetlands occur along the stream channels where topography is relatively level. These areas occupy a minor part of the site and have less botanical diversity than the uplands, but together with the uplands they contribute to the overall complexity and diversity of the site. Public access is allowed on the site for the public to enjoy the trails.

FINANCIAL SPREADSHEET

See Appendix A for details.

STATUS OF GOALS FOR 2008 - 2009

- Complete 1-2 land acquisitions including at least one donation.
 - THE CITY COMPLETED THE PURCHASE OF A CONSERVATION EASEMENT ON 10-ACRE IN SCIO TOWNSHIP IN PARTNERSHIP WITH THE TOWNSHIP.
 - FOUR OTHER TRANSACTIONS ARE IN THE PROCESS AND EXPECT TO CLOSE DURING THE NEXT FISCAL YEAR.
- Complete rezoning and annexation of 30 parks that were acquired but have not been annexed into the City or rezoned to public land.
 - THE REZONING OF ALL PARK LAND TO PUBLIC LAND HAS BEEN COMPLETED. IN ADDITION, ALL THE PARKS THAT HAD BEEN TOWNSHIP ISLANDS ARE IN THE PROCESS OF BEING ANNEXED INTO THE CITY.

GOALS FOR 2009 - 2010

- Complete 1 2 transactions, including one donation.
- Update priorities for future land acquisitions.

APPENDICES

Appendix A: Financial Report

Appendix B: Compilation of news articles

Appendix A: Fiscal Year 2008-2009 Financial Report

City of Ann Arbor INCOME STATEMENT - OPEN SPACE AND PARKLAND PRESERVATION MILLAGE (FINAL) For the Period Ended October 31, 2009

	FY 2003/04	FY 2004/05	FY 2005/06	FY 2006/07	FY 2007/08	FY 2009	FY 2010 as of 10/31/2009
REVENUE							
Millage Proceeds Bond/Note Proceeds		\$ 1,939,530	\$ 2,014,851 20,108,066	\$ 2,130,654	\$ 2,237,489	\$ 2,232,550	\$ 2,266,473 \$
Investment Income Prior Year Refund of Expenses Refund of Escrow	1	116,040	760,529	1,177,978 3,918	920,378 2,643 8,409	815,261 0 0	\$
State Grants Federal Grants		659,337 -	190,642	1,257,400	336,643	681,800	
Contributions & Memorials Gross Revenue Tax Refund		50,000 \$ 2,764,907 (1,546)	\$ 23,074,088 (3,235)	\$ 4,569,950 (1.930)	\$ 3,505,562 (13,020)	\$ 3,729,611 0	\$ 2,500 \$ 2,268,973 \$ -
Uncollectible Personal Property Taxes Net Revenues		(950) \$ 2,762,412	\$ 23,070,853	\$ 4,568,020	\$ 3,492,542	\$ 3,729,611	\$ - \$ 2,268,973
<u>EXPENSES</u>							
DEBT SERVICE		\$	\$ 470,468	\$ 1,158,125	\$ 1,165,950	\$ 1,198,175	\$ 792,888
PROJECTS							
Greenbelt Projects	2	\$ 33,370	\$ 4,746,315	\$ 3,292,912	\$ 1,855,831	\$ 2,641,093	\$ 121,718
Park Projects Total Project Expenditures	3	1,399,484 \$ 1,432,854	\$ 4,950,686	\$ 6,200,228	2,525,060 \$ 4,380,890	\$ 2,878,537	\$ 9,092 \$ 130,810
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Conservation Fund Non-Transaction Expenses Transaction Expenses General Expenses Total Conservation Fund Personnel Contractual - Appraisers	41	\$ 34,920 24,600 11,629 \$ 71,149 9,318	\$ 76,136 68,353 21,857 \$ 166,345	\$ 62,951 42,816 15,991 \$ 121,757 22,729 2,111	\$ 65,029 88,680 14,950 \$ 168,659 10,293 885	\$ 61,370 75,523 2,549 \$ 139,443 21,459	\$ 11,069 \$ 17,735 2,797 \$ 31,601 \$ 9,418 \$ 4,500
Contractual - Clark Contractual - Lonik Professional Services MI Farmland Alliance IT Fund Telecommunications Insurance Fund Advertising Printing Materials & Supplies Bond Issuance Costs Subtotal		28,539 6,245 500 - 1,428 769 21 248 47,069	19,695 - - 2,045 2,664 - - - 84 87,865 \$ 126,255	2,520 2,844 36 (2,138.0) \$ 28,103	200 12,612 2,220 2,752	21,540 88 2,328 66 -	\$ - \$ 83 \$ 564
		Ψ 47,000	Ψ 120,233	Ψ 20,100	φ 20,302	\$ 45,481	\$ 14,565
Total Administrative Expenditures		\$ 118,217	\$ 292,600	\$ 149,860	\$ 197,621	\$ 184,924	\$ 46,166
Total Expenditures		\$ 1,551,071	\$ 5,713,753	\$ 7,508,213	\$ 5,744,461	\$ 4,261,636	\$ 969,864
Net Change In Fund Balance	5	\$ 1,211,341	\$ 17,357,100	\$ (2,940,194)	\$ (2,251,919)	\$ (532,025)	\$ 1,299,109
MEMO Prior year Adjustment Total Fund Balance	\$ 4,260,286	\$ 5,471,627	\$ 22,828,726	\$ 19,888,532	\$ 1,459 \$ 17,635,154	\$ 17,103,130	\$ 18,402,239
Millage Bond					\$ 7,993,111 \$ 9,640,043	\$ 10,225,661 \$ 6,875,468	\$ 12,492,134 \$ 5,905,605

The City of Ann Arbor NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 The City invests the funds balance in accordance with its investment policy. All earnings from investments are included in investment income.

Note 2 Greenbelt Projects - To maintain confidentiality, properties are assigned unique identification numbers during negotiations.

ID No.	FY	04/05	FY 05/06	, FY	Y 06/07	FY 07/08	FY 2009	FY 2010		TOTAL
Biltmore	\$	~	\$ -	\$	-4	\$ 630,235			\$	630,235
Bloomer		4,490	1,923,333		-	-			\$	1,927,823
Bloomer - Endowment		-	-		23,867				\$	23,867
Cares		3,200	500	2	,427,559	9			\$	2,431,259
Cares - Endowment					23,867	-			\$	23,867
Fishbeck-Salem		3,995	804,754			2			\$	808,749
Fishbeck-Superior		4,695	1,992,708		-				\$	1,997,403
Fishbeck - Endowments		-	-		47,733	-			\$	47,733
Fox						192,750			\$	192,750
John & Bev Alexander		3,700	1,300		3,130	1,028,001			\$	1,036,13
John & Bev Alexander - Endowment		0,,,00	1,000		0,700	1,020,001		23,867	\$	23,86
Kapp					760,936			,	\$	760,936
Merkel			2		4,950		856,599	1,350	\$	862,899
Merkel - Endowment					1,000		000,000	23,867	\$	23,86
Smyth		-				455	156,126		\$	156,58
Webster Church			-		-	230	4,800	6,750	\$	11,78
Webster Church - Endowment						200	1,000	23,867		23,86
Gould							7,371	_0,00.	¢	7,37
Charles & Catherine Braun						230	8,796		¢.	9,02
Open Roads, Dudley						200	312,252		\$	312,25
Nixon						230	3,240	1,800	\$	5,27
Girbach						200	0,270	5,400	\$	5,40
Hilton							1,269,864	0,100	\$	1,269,86
Hilton - Endowment							1,200,001	23,867	\$	23,86
2005-01		4,290						20,007	\$	4,29
2005-06		1,200	3,200		4				\$	3,20
2005-08		-	4,815						\$	4,81
2005-12		5,100	500				4,595	7,150	\$	17,34
2005-14		3,900	690			-	.,	,,	\$	4,59
2005-13		0,000	000				3.360	3,800	\$	7,16
2005-15			500		190		0,000	0,000	\$	69
2005-16			500		-	94			\$	50
2005-17			3,890		-				\$	3,89
2005-18		-2.0	4,925		190	_			\$	5,11
2006-02			4,700		190				\$	4,89
2006-03		2	-		300	-			\$	30
2007-06						230	10,850		\$	11,08
2007-22						3,470	3,240		\$	6,710
I Greenbelt	\$	33,370	\$ 4,746,315	\$ 3	,292,912	\$	\$ 2,641,093	\$ 121,718	\$	12,691,239

Note 3 Park Projects

Total

To maintain confidentiality, properties are assigned unique identification numbers during negotiations.

ID No.	FY 04/05	FY 05/06	F	Y 06/07	1	FY 07/08	FY 2009)	FY 2010	TOTAL
Andres	\$ -	 3,000	\$	153,203	\$	2,232				\$ 158,435
Bandemer	5,586	-				12				\$ 5,586
Brookside	2	150,000		-		-				\$ 150,000
Columbus Homes		18,017		15,312		12,946	28,4	74		\$ 74,749
Crary Trust				1,895		8,550	1,5	87		\$ 12,032
Dicken Woods	**	6,900								\$ 6,900
Dolph Nature-South Addition	1,244,267	694					15,6	28		\$ 1,260,590
Evergreen - Lot 108	39,300									\$ 39,300
Evergreen - Lots 78 & 80										\$
Evergreen - Lot 118	57,247	32		-		÷				\$ 57,247
Evergreen - Lot 120	49,668	100		-		-				\$ 49,668
Girl Scouts/Camp Hilltop	2	2,400		2,236,849		-				\$ 2,239,249
Narrow Gauge Way	-	6,600		3.0		1,834,388	3,2	80		\$ 1,844,196
Norfolk Southern	3,365	_		-		7,000	7,7	96	7,792	\$ 25,953
Onder		2,400		487,585		-				\$ 489,985
Traver	(*)			-		65,237				\$ 65,237
Ward Park	50	-		-						\$ 50
Zion Lutheran	4	2,960		12,472		582,232				\$ 597,664
Botsford		2,900		-		2	156,0	00		\$ 158,900
Chapin							11,9	45		\$ 11,945
Elizabeth Kauffman & Wes Vivian						4,450			1,300	\$ 5,750
Linkner	-	-		-		2,155	7,9	80		\$ 10,063
2005-03		2,000								\$ 2,000
2005-04		2,000								\$ 2,000
2005-05	-	4,000				-				\$ 4,000
2005-09	94.0	500								\$ 500
2007-02	-	1.0				4,760				\$ 4,760
2007-03	4	-		- 21		1,110				\$ 1,110
2008-03						•	2,5	00		\$ 2,500
2008-04							2,4			\$ 2,400
Parks	\$ 1,399,484	\$ 204,370	\$	2,907,316	\$	2,525,060	\$ 237,4		\$ 9,092	\$ 7,282,767

City of Ann Arbor OPEN SPACE AND PARKLAND PRESERVATION MILLAGE (FINAL)

		FY 04/05		FY 05/06		FY 06/07		FY 07/08		FY 2009	as	FY 2010 as of 10/31/2009
REVENUE												
Millage Proceeds	δ.	1,939,530	\$	2,014,851	❖	2,130,654	\$	2,237,489	Ş	2,232,550	٠	2,266,473
Bond Proceeds	❖	3	❖	20,108,066	❖	3	Ş	ı	\$	•	ş	•
Fund Balance from Prior Year	↔	4,260,286	❖	7	❖	•	↔	r	\$	1	S	
Investment Income	↔	116,040	Ŷ	760,529	↔	1,177,978	\$	920,378	s	815,261	⟨\$	
Prior Year Refund of Expenses	\$	1	↔	e d	↔	3,918	Ş	2,643	₹>	14.	\$	i
Escrow Refund	❖	ı	\$		⋄	į	S	3	s	1	·S	1
Tax Refund	❖	(1,546)	s	(3,235)	\$	(1,930)	\$	(13,020)	s	ı	\$	1
Uncollectible Property Taxes	\$	(920)	Ş		\$		\$	1	₹Ş.	1	\$	1
Net Revenues	⊹	6,313,360	\$	22,880,211	Υ	3,310,620	❖	3,147,490	φ <u></u>	3,047,811	\$	2,266,473
Parks Advisory Commission (PAC)												
Associated Revenue	↔	2,104,453	Ş	7,626,737	Ś	1,103,540	Ş	1,049,163	↔	1,015,937	<>÷	755,491
Fund Balance from Prior Year	❖	.1	\$	1,379,839	Ş	8,559,073	↔	6,319,302	↔	4,398,275	₹.	4,715,735
Contributions	❖	50,000	Ş	•	↔	*	٠	1				
Escrow Refund							↔	8,409				
Grant reimbursement (St of Mich)	\$	659,337	\$,	↔	•	❖	1				
PAC Associated Admin Expenses	\$	(28,539)	↔	(19,695)	Ş	,	s	i	\$	ì	s	3
Joint PAC/GAC Admin Expenses	₹\$	(3,928)	↔	(66,615)	\$	(49,953)	ş	(64,890)	\$	(61,641)	\$	(13,889)
PAC Debt Service	↔	ı	\$	(156,823)	\$	(386,042)	Ş	(388,650)	↔	(399,392)	\$	(399,392)
Project Expenditures	Φ.	(1,401,484)	\$	(204,370)	\$	(2,907,316)	Ş	(2,525,060)	٠Ş	(237,444)	₹>	(9,092)
Fund Balance	Φ.	1,379,839	δ.	8,559,073	\$	6,319,302	❖	4,398,275	ζ.	4,715,735	Ş	5,048,853
Greenbelt Advisory Commission (GAC)												
Associated Revenue	\$	4,208,907	s	15,253,474	Ş	2,207,080	ş	2,098,327	\$	2,031,874	\$	1,510,982
Fund Balance from Prior Year	\$	à	S	4,089,786	\$	14,267,652	Ş	13,567,230	Ş	13,236,337	\$	12,386,853
Grant Reimbursement (FRPP)	\$,	\$	190,642	S	1,257,400	\$	336,643	Ş	681,800	\$	•
Contributions and Memorials	↔	ï	❖	1	\$	٠	\$	1	Ş		\$	2,500
GAC Associated Admin Expenses	❖	(77,894)	❖	(73,059)	s	,	\$	(2,952)	s	ı	\$	(4,500)
Joint PAC/GAC Admin Expenses	δ.	(7,857)	\$	(133,231)	Ş	(206'66)	\$	(129,779)	\$	(123,282)	ş	(77777)
GAC Debt Service	\$	1	\$	(313,645)	Ş	(772,083)	\$	(777,300)	ş	(798,783)	\$	(528,592)
Project Expenditures	Υ٠	(33,370)	\$	(4,746,315)	❖	(3,292,912)	\$	(1,855,831)	\$	(2,641,093)	\$	(121,718)
Fund Balance	⋄	4,089,786	❖	14,267,652	Ş	13,567,230	ᡐ	13,236,337	❖	12,386,853	⋄	13,217,748
							₩.	17,634,613	↔	17,102,588	↔	18,266,602

Fund 24 Administrative Limit Calculation

Fund 24 Administrative Limit C	alculation								1	Y 2010
Limit on Administrative Expend	diture		FY 04/05		FY 05/06	FY 06/07	FY 07/08	FY 2009	10	as of /31/2009
Cumulative Legal Limit *		\$	4,120,400	×	\$ 4,002,183	\$ 3,709,583	\$ 3,559,723	\$ 3,362,102	* \$ 3	3,177,1 79
Administrative Expenditure (from	income statement)	<u>\$</u>	118,217		\$ 292,600) \$ 149,860	\$ 197,621	\$ 184,924	<u></u>	46,166
Remainder		\$	4,002,183		\$ 3,709,583	\$ 3,559,723	\$ 3,362,102	\$ 3,177,179	<u>\$ 3</u>	3,131,013
* L;mit calculation (legal)	Six percent of bond principal Millage Revenue		20,250,000	6.0%	\$ 1,215,000					
		<u>\$</u>	(35,976,660) 48,423,340	6.0%	\$ 2,905,400					
	Maximum Administrative Expenditure over 30 years		=		\$ 4,120,400					
Limit on Administrative Expend	diture		FY 04/05		FY 05/06	FY 06/07	FY 07/08	FY 2009		FY 2010 as of /31/2009
Cumulative Operating Limit *		\$	3,296,320	×	\$ 3,178,103	\$ 2,885,503	\$ 2,735,643	\$ 2,538,022	* \$ 2	2,353,099
Administrative Expenditure (from i	income statement)	\$	118,217		\$ 292,600	\$ 149,860	\$ 197,621	\$ 184,924	<u>\$</u>	46,166
Remainder		\$	3,178,103		\$ 2,885,503	\$ 2,735,643	\$ 2,538,022	\$ 2,353,099	\$ 2	,306,933
* Limit calculation (operating)	4.8% percent of bond principal		20,250,000	4.8%	\$ 972,000					
	Millage Revenue Debt Service 4.8% percent of excess millage after debt service	<u>\$</u>		4.8%	\$ 2,324,320					
	Maximum Administrative Expenditure over 30 years				\$ 3,296,320					
Comparision of Administrative	Expenditures to Total Expenditures		FY 04/05		FY 05/06	FY 06/07	FY 07/08	FY 2009		Y 2010 as of /31/2009
Total Expenditures (from income s	tatement)	\$	1,551,071		\$ 5,713,753	\$ 7,508,213	\$ 5,744,461	\$ 4,261,636	\$	969,864
Total Administrative Expenditures	(from income statement)	\$	118,217		\$ 292,600	\$ 149,860	<u>\$ 197,621</u>	\$ 184,924	\$	46,166
Percentage			7.6%	Pag	5.1%	2.0%	3.4%	4.3%		4.8%

Appendix B: Compilation of News Articles